
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 

AGENDA 
 

Winnebago County Courthouse 
400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 

County Board Room, 8th Floor and 
(In Person Meeting with Zoom Option) 

 
Thursday, July 22, 2021 

6:00 p.m.  
 

1. Call to Order  .............................................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance ..................................... Board Member Brad Lindmark 
 
3. Agenda Announcements ............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ............................................................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

A. Award – Associate Judge Donna R. Honzel, Recipient of Seely Forbes Award  
B. Presentation – Land Bank Update by Gary Anderson 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – None  
E. Proclamations – “Festa Italiana Days” Presented to Mike Maffiolli 

“Rockford’s Italian Sister City” Presented to Valeri DeCastris 
F. Chairman’s Service Award – Presented to Paul Logli 

 
6. Approval of Minutes ................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of June 21 and 28, 2021 minutes  
B. Layover of July 8 and 14, 2021 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda .......................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report 
B. Auditor’s Report – Approval of Bills 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30 day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule). 
A. River Bluff Advisory Committee:  Kevin McCarthy 

 
9. Reports of Standing Committees .................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee .................................................... Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 



www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

1. Committee Report 
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee ................................... Jas Bilich, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Abating Property Taxes On Property Located At 707 Fulton Avenue, 

Rockford, Illinois Specifically Identified As Property Index Number 11-12-352-001 And 
Commonly Known As Ingersoll Real Estate, LLC  

3. Resolution Authorizing Participation In Abandoned Residential Property Municipal 
Relief Program Grant   

4. Resolution Approving Greenways: A Greenways Plan For Boone, Ogle, and Winnebago 
Counties  

 
D. Operations & Administrative Committee ............... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Adopting Procedures for Remote Meeting Attendance Pursuant to the 

Illinois Open Meetings Act, 5 ILCS 120/7 
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. (21-019) Resolution Authorizing the Award of a Bid for Shirland/Rockton Road 

Resurfacing from Meridian Road to the Rockton Village Limits and Appropriation of 
Rebuild Illinois Funds (RBI) (Section 20-00680-00-RS)  
Cost:  $ 1,241,496.67      C.B. District:  2 

3. (21-020) Resolution Authorizing the Award of a Bid for Latham Road Culvert 
Replacements from Meridian Road to Owen Center Road (Section 21-00684-00-DR) 
Cost:  $ 49,035.47       C.B. District:  1  

4. (21-021) Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Local Public Agency Amendment #1 
for Federal Participation for Rehabilitation of the Alpine Road Bridge over Forest Hills 
Road (Section 19-00620-00-BR)  
Cost:      $4,678,500 
Federal: $3,742,800 
County: $   935,700      C.B. District:  17 & 20 

5. (21-022) Ordinance Establishing a Speed Zone on Hamborg Road From Belvidere Road 
to Burr Oak Road in Harlem and Roscoe Townships 
Cost:  $ N/A       C.B. District: 4 & 7 

6. (21-023) Resolution Authorizing the Award of 5 Year Leases for Two Wheel Loaders 
Cost:  $45,875.08 per year for 5 years    C.B. District: N/A 
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee…………………………….Burt Gerl, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report      

 
10. Unfinished Business…………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

Appointments 



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

A. New Milford Fire Protection District, Read in June 10, 2021, Compensation:  $1,200 Per 
Year/$100 Per Monthly Meeting 
1. Rob Sickler (3 – Year Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, May 2021 – May 2024 

B. Cherry Valley Fire Protection District, Read in June 10, 2021, Compensation:  $4,500/$375 
Per Month with Certification Classes 
1. William LeFevre (3 – Year Reappointment), Cherry Valley, Illinois, May 2020 – May 

2023 
2. Rebecca Ihne (3 – Year Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, May 2021 – May 2024 
3. Karl Ericksen (3 – Year Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, May 2019 – May 2022 

C. Board of Health, Read in June 21, 2021, Compensation:  None 
1. Gabrielle Torina (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, June 2021 – June 2024 

(Appointed by Rockford City Council 05/20/21) 
D. Zoning Board of Appeals, Read in June 21, 2021), Compensation:  $1,200 Per Year/$100 

Per Monthly Meeting 
1. Greg Tilly (New Appointment), Cherry Valley, Illinois, to Fill Remaining Term of Arlene 

Williams which Expires November 2021 
Finance Committee 
A. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Reimbursable Technology Laid Over 

from July 8, 2021 Meeting 
B. Ordinance Authorizing a Budget Amendment to Allocate Funds Received from the U.S. 

Treasury Department as Directed Under the American Rescue Plan Act (ARP) Laid Over 
from July 8, 2021 Meeting  

C. Ordinance Authorizing a Budget Amendment to Allocate Funds Received from the U.S. 
Treasury Department Under the Emergency Rental Assistance Program II Laid Over from 
July 8, 2021 Meeting 

Operations and Administrative Committee 
A. Resolution Adopting Criteria for the Operation of the County’s Delinquent Tax Program 

Laid Over from July 8, 2021 Meeting 
 

11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

12. Announcements & Communications .................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)  

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, August 12, 2021    



 

  
Awards,  

Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 

 
 



SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    
     June 24, 2021 

 
For Immediate Release           Contact:  Thomas R. Jakeway 
                 Trial Court Administrator   
   Phone - 815-319-4806 

Email – tjakeway@17thcircuit.illinoiscourts.gov 
 

 
              MEDIA RELEASE 
 

Associate Judge Donna R. Honzel Receives  
Winnebago County Bar Association Award  

 
 
ROCKFORD, IL –  Chief Judge Eugene G. Doherty is pleased to announce that on June 23rd 

Associate Judge Donna R. Honzel was honored with the Winnebago County Bar Association 
Seely Forbes Award.  Each year, the Winnebago County Bar Association presents its Seely 
Forbes Award to a member of the association who best exemplifies Judge Forbes’ characteristics 
of kindness, courtesy, thoughtfulness, consideration, and moral courage. 
 
Outgoing Winnebago County Bar Association President Douglas Henry commented, “Judge 
Honzel is a most worthy recipient of the Seely Forbes Award. Throughout her career as a lawyer 
and judge she has always displayed kindness to her colleagues and the public.  She exemplifies 
the highest ideals of our profession to which we all aspire and serves as a role model of good 
citizenship to us all.”  
 
“I was completely taken by surprise,” said Judge Honzel.  “So many prior recipients have been 
people I admired and respected and to be included in that group is an incredible honor.” 
 
Judge Honzel received her undergraduate degree in Criminal Justice Administration from 
Central Missouri State University in 1988, and a Juris Doctor from the University of Illinois in 
1991.  She was appointed as an associate judge in December 2015.  Judge Honzel is currently 
assigned to the Civil Division and presides over assigned cases in Winnebago County.  She is an 
active member of the Illinois Judges Association, Illinois State Bar Association, and she is a 
member and past president of the Winnebago County Bar Association. 
 
 

###### 

EUGENE G. DOHERTY 
Chief Judge 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY COURTHOUSE 
400 WEST STATE STREET, SUITE 215 

 ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61101 
PHONE (815) 319-4806  

 

  

STATE OF ILLINOIS 
CIRCUIT COURT 

SEVENTENTH JUDICAL CIRCUIT 

mailto:tjakeway@17thcircuit.illinoiscourts.gov






Paul Logli
I, Joseph V. Chiarelli, Chairman of the Winnebago County Board hereby
recognize Paul Logli for his many years of outstanding service to the residents of
Winnebago County as the former President and CEO of the United Way of
Rock River Valley. This award acknowledges his unwavering dedication,
professionalism, integrity and sustained commitment to excellence. Paul Logli
represents the very best values of our community and has served as a great
example of what our community deserves in its public servants.

presented to

______________________
Winnebago County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli

Joseph V. Chiarelli



 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 































 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 









 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 

























































































































































































































 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



Sponsored By: Keith McDonald                                               County Board Meeting: July 22, 2021 
 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2021 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING PROCEDURES FOR REMOTE MEETING ATTENDANCE 

PURSUANT TO THE ILLINOIS OPEN MEETINGS ACT, 5 ILCS 120/7 
 

 

WHEREAS, on June 25, 2021, Governor J.B. Pritzker issued a new Gubernatorial 
Disaster Proclamation due to the COVID-19 pandemic, which shall remain in effect until July 
24, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, for Open Meetings Act purposes (5 ILCS 120/1 et seq.) (the “Act”), the 
Proclamation provides in relevant part that due to the ongoing public health concerns, Governor 
Pritzker renders in-person attendance of more than ten people at the regular meeting location not 
feasible. However, Governor Pritzker is not expected to extend the Proclamation after July 24, 
2021;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to section (c) of the Act, 5 ILCS 120/7(c), “A majority of the 
public body may allow a member to attend a meeting by other means only in accordance with 
and to the extent allowed by rules adopted by the public body”; and   

WHEREAS, upon the expiration of the Proclamation, the Winnebago County Board 
desires to return to all in-person meetings and comply with the requirements of the Act; and  

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board has determined that it is appropriate to adopt 
procedures to allow members of the public body to attend meetings by other means, which shall 
include video or audio conference, and satisfy the requirements in the Act and provided herein.  

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois as follows: 

A. Pursuant to section (a) of the Act, 5 ILCS 120/7(a), if a quorum of the members of the 
Winnebago County Board is physically present as required by Section 2.01 of the Act, a 
majority of those members may allow a member of that body to attend the meeting by 
other means (video or audio) if the member is prevented from physically attending 
because of the following reasons: 
 

i. Personal illness or disability; or 
ii. Employment purposes; or 



iii. the business of the public body; or 
iv. A family or other emergency.  

 
B. Pursuant to section (b) of the Act, 5 ILCS 120/7(b), a member wishing to attend a 

meeting by video or audio conference must notify the Clerk of the County Board before 
the meeting unless advance notice is impractical.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the County Board Chairman and County Administrator. 

 
 

         Respectfully submitted, 
        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

 AGREE     DISAGREE 

 
________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Keith McDonald, Chairman         Keith McDonald, Chairman                               
                             
_________________________________          ___________________________________ 
John Butitta, Vice Chairman           John Butitta, Vice Chairman 
 
_________________________________          ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby               Jean Crosby 
 
_________________________________           ____________________________________ 
Paul Arena               Paul Arena  
 
_________________________________      ____________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman                     Joe Hoffman 
 
_________________________________      ____________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd          Dorothy Redd 
 
__________________________________        _____________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado                     Jaime Salgado 

 
 

 
 
 
 



The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County  
of Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of __________, 2021. 
 

 

                      ____________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph Chiarelli, Chairman of the 

County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 









































































 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 
 
I have been a resident of Winnebago County for 45 years. 
 
I am asking to be considered for reappointment to the                                          
 
New Milford Fire Protection District board as the Treasurer Trustee. 
 
I have been Treasurer for 3 terms and have served under                         
 
many boards presidents. 
 
I would like to continue as New Milford Fire Protection District Treasurer. 
 
Before becoming a trustee, I was a Fire Fighter with New Milford Fire   
 
Protection District for 10 years. 
 
With the experience listed I believe I am qualified to continue as board treasurer. 
 
 
Robert M. Sickler 
 
815-871-1755 
 
robsickler17@gmail.com 
 

mailto:robsickler17@gmail.com


 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: June 10, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person(s) to 
serve as County appointees on the Cherry Valley Fire Protection District Board 
 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Karl Ericksen, Rockford, Illinois, 3-year reappointment May 19 – May 22  
William LeFevre, Cherry Valley, Illinois, 3-year reappointment May 20 – May 23 
Rebecca Ihne, Rockford, Illinois, 3-year reappointment May 21 – May 24 
 

About the Cherry Valley Fire Protection District 
Location:  4919 Blackhawk Road, Cherry Valley, IL 
Service Description:  Provide fire emergency, medical and other life safety services to the Village 

of Cherry Valley and Winnebago and Boone Counties 

Board Composition:  Three trustees, appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board 

Origin of Entity: Fire Protection District AT (70 ILCS 705/1) 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

District levies and annual property tax, charges for services and replacement 
tax 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

If applicable 

Compensation: None 

 









Rebecca Sue (Cornman) Ihne 

Education: 
 •    June 1963  -  Graduation from Rockford East High School   
 •    June 1967  -  Bachelor’s Degree in Education from Northern Illinois University 
 •    August 1972  -  Master’s  Degree in Outdoor Education from Northern Illinois Univ. 
 •    About 40  credits earned beyond Master’s Degree in Education in Reading, Early   
  Childhood, and Behavior Disorders 

Employment: 
 •   1967-1971  -  Rockford School District 205 
       Teacher/Diagnostician for Learning Disabled children 
 •   1971-1972  -  Part time in Rockford School District 
        Teacher/Diagnostician for Learning Disabled children 
 •   1972-1974  -  Breaks to have 2 children. 
      Subbed in Rockford District   
      Taught summer school in Rockford School District 
 •Summer 1974   Supervised Student Teachers from Northern Illinois University 
 •   1975-1976  -  Full time in Rockford School District 
         Teacher/Diagnostician for Learning Disabled children 
 •   1976-1981  -  Kinnikinnick School District 
        Teacher/Diagnostician for Learning Disabled children 
         Reading Instructor for 4th & 5th Grade students 
 •   1981-1986  -  Subbed in Rockford School District  
 •   1986-2000  -  Rockford Public School District 
         Teacher for Behavior Disordered Students  (1981-1995) 
                   Reading Specialist & Implementor at Stiles Elementary  (1995-2000) 
        Supervised Student Teachers from Northern Illinois University  
 •   2000     Retired from Teaching  
 •   2007-2013    Cherry Valley Fire Protection District - Fire Commissioner - Secretary 
 •.  2013-Present  Cherry Valley Fire Protection District - Trustee - Secretary 

Page �1





 
 

 
Karl J. Ericksen 815.378.9157 
3718 Gnarl Tree Lane, Cherry Valley, IL 61016 kericksen@icloud.com 
 
Professional Profile 
 
Over 14 years of experience with the Cherry Valley Fire Protection District, as well as 10+ years 
of experience with other fire departments and agencies through instructing and committees.  
Approximately 2 years as Fire Department Director of Training.  Current profession offers day-
to-day involvement with tasks and responsibilities associated with operating a well-respected, 
manufacturing business, locally owned. 
 

• Respected Leader amongst the ranks 
of Fire Fighters and Officers 

• Ability to perform and execute under 
high stress situations  

• Dedicated to Training and Education  

• Dedicated to the profession and the 
people we served 

• Continuous Improvement 
• Countless hours dedicated to teaching 

and training 

Professional Experience 
 
ROCKFORM CARBIDE MANUFACTURING, INC., Rockford, IL 1997 – Current 

• 1997 – 1999: General Clerk 
o Customer communication, shipping & receiving, general sales 

 
• 1999 – 2003:  Sales Representative 

o Managed sales and growth for several product lines 
 

• 2003 – 2008:  Operations Manager 
o Responsible for the day to day operations company wide, 8-10 employees, 

answered directly to owners 
 

• 2008 – 2014:  Sales Manager 
o Responsible for all sales and marketing that relates to the company worldwide 

 
• 2014 – Current:  Vice President & Owner 

o Day-to-day operations of entire company 
 

CHERRY VALLEY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, Cherry Valley, IL 1992 – Current 
• 1992 – 1995:  Junior Firefighter 

o Attend trainings and events to learn the “trade” 
 
• 1995 – 2003: Firefighter 

o Typical firefighter duties, including, but not limited to, attending weekly 
trainings, outside classes and education, meetings, emergency calls, 
association activities, and public events 

• 2003 – 2005: Director of Training 
o Responsible for training, training grounds and equipment, and training 

records for the entire department.  Organized weekly training schedules, 
requirements and new recruit induction training classes. 



Karl J.  Ericksen • 815.378.9157 • kericksen@icloud.com 
 

 
 

• 2014 – 2015: Fire Commissioner 
o Board member responsible for the hiring, promotions, discipline and 

termination of the full time Cherry Valley Fire Fighters 
• 2015 – Present: Trustee 

o Board member responsible for the budget and policy of the district.  Active in 
Fire District functions, including open houses, promotional ceremonies, and 
other activities involving the community.    

 
 
Professional Achievements 
 

• 2 Time recipient of the Firefighter of the Year Award 
• Recipient of Department Commendation for Successful Rescue in House Fire 
• Certified Instructor I, Fire Fighter II, SCUBA, Open Water Rescue, EMT-B 
• Respected leader amongst the ranks for Firefighters and Officers 
• Past President of the Cherry Valley Firefighters Association 
• Founding member of the Regional Recruit Academy to assist in the induction training of 

new firefighters for local volunteer fire departments 
 
Education 
 
Northern Illinois University, DeKalb, IL 

• 3 Years completed 
 
References 
 

• References are available upon request. 



ENGAGEMENT & COMMUNICATIONS MANAGER 
TRANSFORM ROCKFORD FOUNDATION 

FEB 2020 - NOV 2020 

Member of  Winn.  County COVID-19 cr is is  comms taskforce  

Implemented a volunteer management strategy for a 500-

person volunteer database  

Moderator/part ic ipant for  var ious community events/forums

Produced high-production annual report  v ideo for 2020 

CONSTITUENT ADVOCATE & FIELD REPRESENTATIVE
U.S.  HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES/CONGRESSWOMAN BUSTOS

APR 2018 - FEB 2020

Coordinated broad engagement planning in 3 counties and

represented the House Member at  community events

Wrote Congressional  Records read on the House f loor

Resolved const i tuent issues with federal  agencies and

recovered $300K in retro-act ively owed funds 

Manager of  intern staffers

CONTRACTS ADMINISTRATOR/COMMUNICATIONS FOCAL
UTC AEROSPACE SYSTEMS

MAY 2015 -  APR 2018

Contract Administrator for  the NASA space shutt le Orion 

Implemented a nat ionally benchmarked communicat ions

strategy which increased engagement in the Women in

Aerospace employee resource group by 85%

Received the highest honor "Level 1  Award" for  strategic

execution of Take Your Chi ld to Work Day:  a 1K-person event 

MARKETING SPECIALIST 
LANDSTAR SYSTEM, INC. 

AUG 2005 - MAY 2015

Co-creator of  the Focused Research Observat ion Group (FROG)

which establ ished the corporat ion's customer service standard

included in 800+ employees’  annual reviews

Employee of the Month Award:  provided sales and capacity

sourcing strategy for $25M in awarded business

Coordinated and presented at  nat ional  trade shows 

Created and faci l i tated onl ine training Webinars 

I  am an integrator that synthesizes

knowledge gained from the publ ic ,

pr ivate,  and non-prof i t  sectors to

administer elegant communicat ion

for governmental  ent i t ies and

responsible organizat ions.  

P R O F I L E

Community Engagement

Corporate Events 

Government Affairs

Social  Media Management

Strategic Communicat ion

Volunteer Management

T O P  S K I L L S

Northwest Community Center Board

Wabongo Leadership Counci l  Board

Family Peace Center

Laundry Love 

Northwestern Alumni Associat ion 

V O L U N T E E R I S M

W O R K  E X P E R I E N C E

E D U C A T I O N

B.A.  COMMUNICATIONS MANAGEMENT 
JUDSON UNIVERSITY ( S U M M A  C U M  L A U D E )

A W A R D S
40 LEADERS UNDER 40 (2019)

25 BLACK LEADERS TO WATCH (2015)

M.S.  COMMUNICATION 
NORTHWESTERN UNIVERSITY 

ROCKFORD PARK DISTRICT COMMUNITY

SERVICE AWARD (2017 )
WOMEN'S ENTREPRENEURSHIP CERTIFICATE
CORNELL UNIVERSITY 

CRISIS COMMUNICATION CERTIFICATE
NORTHWESTERN UNIVERSITY 

Rockford, IL 

815-222-9440

gabrielletorina@gmail.com

YWCA WOMEN IN ACHIEVEMENT 

SCHOLARSHIP (2016)  



Gabrielle Torina is an integrator who brings more than 15 years of experience executing a wide variety of communication intelligence and doing
so with scrupulous attention to detail. She blends her diverse experience working for organizations that represent the public, private, and non-
profit sectors to provide a unique mosaic of valuable expertise. 

Torina was the Engagement and Communications Manager for Transform Rockford: a community driven movement which works to improve the
social and economic well-being of citizens in the Rockford Region. She executes all internal/external communication functions and elevates the
community’s shared values through broad engagement. Previously, Torina was with United States House of Representatives as a Constituent
Advocate and Field Representative for the Honorable Congresswoman Cheri Bustos of Illinois. She was responsible for public relations
functions, attending and speaking at events on the Congresswoman's behalf, and advocating for citizens by helping them to resolve issues with
the federal government. She was a member of Congresswoman’s Veterans Council and Education Action Team, and has solidified legitimate
relationships with diverse constituent groups, media outlets, and city and state officials. 

Prior to her role in Congress, Torina worked for United Technologies as a Contract Administrator on the program team that engineered the
electric power management and distribution system for the NASA space shuttle Orion. She worked alongside the NASA communications team
for the Journey to Mars Expo at the Chicago Air and Water Show, in addition to being the project manager for the NASA Journey to Mars supplier
appreciation event. Torina also co-led Women in Aerospace, an employee resource group with a membership of over 500. She implemented a
communications strategy which significantly increased employee engagement and established nationally benchmarked practices. Additionally,
Torina was assigned the role of project manager for campus-wide initiative Take Your Child To Work Day, a 1,000 person event with 100
volunteers. Her expert leadership of this project was awarded the prestigious United Technologies Level 1 Award within her first year of
employment. 

Her early career was spent at Landstar Transportation Inc. where over the course of 10 years she worked in various marketing roles. Torina
prides herself on “creating social media content in the early 2000’s when you didn’t have anyone to copy.” It was there that she gained a variety of
experience in social content creation, national trade show management, and email campaigns. Torina was also responsible for creating and
delivering online training programs and facilitating speaking engagements across the country. 

She is deeply rooted in her Christian faith, community, and is an advocate for the underserved. She volunteers as the Registrar for Laundry
Love, a ministry that helps low income families launder their clothes and linens. She is also an executive board member of the Wabongo
Leadership Council, a 501c3 non-profit that focuses on providing strategic resources and building leadership capacity in African American
teens. Additionally, she is a board member of the Northwest Community Center, Co-Chair of the Family Peace Center Community Engagement
Committee, member of the Northwestern MSC Alumni Association,  and a member of the Community Foundation of Northern Illinois
Scholarship Committee. Torina is also member of the National Association of Black Journalists (NABJ) and an active church member of the All
Nations Worship Assembly in Chicago, IL. 

Torina received her Bachelor of Arts in Communications Management summa cum laude from Judson University (Elgin, IL) with Alpha Sigma
Lambda National Honor's Society recognition. She also received her Master of Science in Communication  from esteemed Northwestern
University (Evanston, IL). Additionally, she holds a Certificate in Women’s Entrepreneurship from Cornell University (Ithaca, NY), is certified in
crisis communications by the Northwestern University Executive Education program, and is a graduate of the Rockford Chamber of Commerce
Leadership Alliance. She was named a 40 Leaders Under 40 by the Rockford Chamber of Commerce (2019), she also received the Rockford Park
District Community Service Award (2017), the YWCA Women in Achievement Scholarship Award (2016), and was named one of the 25 Black Leaders
to Watch (2015).  

Torina utilizes her testimony to encourage others to actualize their full potential, and regardless of past adversity to always believe their life has
a compelling purpose. She strives to never stop caring for the overlooked, and to continue sharing her gift of elegant communication to lead
collaboration, foster relationships, and elevate social causes and brands. Torina was nicknamed "the curator of excellence" by her colleagues
and strives to deliver on this measurement daily in her life and community.

G A B R I E L L E T O R I N A @ G M A I L . C O M BIO









Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By: Circuit Court -Thomas Jakeway 

Committee: Finance 

Committee Date: July 1, 2021 

Resolution Title: Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Reimbursable Technology 

Expenditures 

County Code: Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date: July 8, 2021 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted? No Appropriation Amount: $21,333.97 

If not, explain funding source: Pre-Approved State Reimbursement 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 32000-42290 Budget Impact: Neutral 

Background Information: 

The Administrative Office of the Illinois Courts is administering a COVID Rapid Relief Funding 

program for court technology needs. The Court and County were jointly awarded approval for 

specified reimbursable expenses totaling $21,333.97. Approved goods/resources include 

document cameras for courtrooms and dedicated video conferencing equipment for the 

probation department and the juvenile detention facility. 

Recommendation: Good/resources were selected in consultation with the Department of 

Information Technology. 

Contract/Agreement: See attached. 

Legal Review: Not necessary 

Follow-Up: Purchase items and process necessary reimbursement paperwork. 

ResExSummary 20.1 version 









 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      
    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 

 

Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 

 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

 

Committee Date:  July 1, 2021 

 

Resolution Title:   Ordinance Authorizing a Budget Amendment to Allocate Funds 
Received from the U.S. Treasury Department as Directed Under the 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARP) 

 

County Code:       Not applicable  

   

Board Meeting Date:    July 8, 2021 

 
Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?          No                Appropriation Amount:          $20,000,000 

If not, explain funding source:          U.S. Department of the Treasury ARP Funds 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:          61300    Budget Impact:          N/A 

 
 

Background Information: The American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, also called the COVID-19 
Stimulus Package or American Rescue Plan, is a $ 1.9 trillion 
economic stimulus bill passed by the 117th U.S. Congress and 
signed into law by President Biden on March 11, 2021 to speed up 
the United States' recovery from the economic and health effects 
of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

  
Recommendation:   Staff concurs   
 
Contract/Agreement:  Not applicable  
 
Legal Review:     Not Applicable 
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 

 

2021 Fiscal Year Finance: July 1, 2021 
 Lay Over: July 8, 2021 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote:           July 22, 2021 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 

2021 CO 
 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, Winnebago County has received funds from the American Recovery Plan as 
part of the federal government’s response to the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 at its September 24, 2020 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2021-012 American Recovery Plan. 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 

 



2 

 

   
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 

 

 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



6/17/2021

American Rescue Plan Dave Rickert

0313

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

61300 41110 Regular Salaries $0 $0 $0 $645,400 $645,400
61300 41211 Health Insurance-Employer Cont $0 $0 $0 $64,179 $64,179
61300 42110 Supplies $0 $0 $0 $13,040 $13,040
61300 43310 Travel $0 $0 $0 $2,381 $2,381
61300 42115 Non-Capital Office Equipment $0 $0 $0 $2,878,865 $2,878,865
61300 43167 Software Subsciption $0 $0 $0 $260,000 $260,000
61300 42491 Software Licensing Fee $0 $0 $0 $92,880 $92,880
61300 43190 Other Professional Services $0 $0 $0 $2,145,000 $2,145,000
61300 43204 ARP Community Business Grants $0 $0 $0 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

61300 46320 Building Improvements $0 $0 $0 $1,735,393 $1,735,393

61300 46410 Automobiles $0 $0 $0 $2,276,000 $2,276,000
61300 46430 Machinery & Equipment $0 $0 $0 $950,000 $950,000
61300 46586 Data Processing Equipment $0 $0 $0 $3,273,100 $3,273,100
61300 46999 Project Contingency $0 $0 $0 $4,063,762 $4,063,762
61300 49110 Transfer to Other Fund $0 $0 $0 $600,000 $600,000

Revenue

13500 39110 Transfer From Other Fund $2,163,000 $0 $2,163,000 $600,000 $2,763,000

$20,000,000

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: American Recovery Plan Funds

2021

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:

SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2021 budget:  

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:

DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

$0 

Winnebago County has received money from the Federal government as part of the American Rescue Plan, in response to the 

Covid-19 pandemic. This budget amendment will allow us to put forth a budget to spend some of that money.

2021-012

61300DEPT. BUDGET NO.



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  July 1, 2021 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance Authorizing a Budget Amendment to Allocate Funds 

Received from the U.S. Treasury Department Under the Emergency 
Rental Assistance Program II. 

 
County Code:       Not applicable  
   
Board Meeting Date:    July 8, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?          No                Appropriation Amount:          $2,651,023 

If not, explain funding source:          U.S. Department of the Treasury ERAP II Funds 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:          601200    Budget Impact:          N/A 
 
 

Background Information: The COVID-19 Emergency Rental Assistance Program Phase II will 
provide approximately $353 million nationally in rental assistance 
to low- and moderate-income households that have had a 
substantial reduction in income or incurred significant costs as a 
result of the pandemic, including those who are homeless or at risk 
of homelessness. The amount currently distributed to Winnebago 
County is $2,651,023. 

  
Recommendation:   Staff concurs   
 
Contract/Agreement:  Not applicable  
 
Legal Review:     Not Applicable 
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2021 Fiscal Year Finance: Jul 1, 2021 
 Lay Over: Jul 8, 2021 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: Jul 22, 2021 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2021 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, Winnebago County has received a second federal grant to help its citizens 
who have been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic, with rental and utility payment assistance. 
  
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 at its September 24, 2020 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2021-013 Emergency Rental Assistance II. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 



2 
 

   
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



6/21/2021
Finance Dave Rickert

0312

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

61200 41110 Regular Salaries $0 $0 $0 $397,653 $397,653

23200 Total Personnel: $397,653

61200 43192 Rent Assistance Prog $0 $0 $0 $2,110,216 $2,110,216
61200 43193 Utility Assistance Prog $0 $0 $0 $143,154 $143,154

Total Supplies: $2,253,370
Total Expenses: $2,651,023

Revenue
61200 32110 Federal Operating Grant $0 $0 $0 $2,651,023 $2,651,023

Total Revenue:
$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Federal Grant

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2021 budget:  

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Winnebago County has received a second  Federal Grant for emergency rental assistance in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. 
This grant includes funds for staff and relief funds.

2021-013

61200DEPT. BUDGET NO.

2021
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT



Sponsored by:  Paul Arena   County Board Meeting: July 8, 2021 
  
  

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2021 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING CRITERIA FOR THE OPERATION OF THE COUNTY’S 

DELINQUENT TAX PROGRAM 
 

 
WHEREAS, on October 24, 2019, the Winnebago County Board adopted Resolution 

2019 CR 127, authorizing the execution of a contract between the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
(County) and Region 1 Planning Council (R1PC) for R1PC to act as the County’s Agent in the 
operation of a Delinquent Tax Program; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the contract, R1PC is responsible for marketing and selling the 

property to the highest, responsible buyer; and 
 
WHEREAS, after reviewing the current operations of the delinquent tax program, the 

Operations and Administrative Committee finds it is in the best interests of the citizens and 
taxing bodies in Winnebago County, Illinois to create additional criteria when evaluating 
submitted bids on properties under the program; and  

 
WHEREAS, the additional criteria will make prospective buyers ineligible for bidding 

on properties under the program if they are tax delinquent on other properties they own within 
Winnebago County, Illinois; and 

 
WHEREAS, this criteria for the Delinquent Tax Program would further support the two 

specific goals of the County and taxing districts within Winnebago County, Illinois, which are as 
follows: 

 
1. To recover delinquent real estate taxes for the benefit of all taxing districts having 

an interest in the particular parcel of real estate, and, 
 

2. In the case of property to which the County of Winnebago, as Trustee, ultimately 
takes a tax deed pursuant to the Property Tax Code, it will aid in the expeditious 
transfer of ownership and the return of that property to a responsible property 
owner (emphasis added).  

 
 



NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the Winnebago County Board hereby adopts the criteria for the operation 
of the County’s Delinquent Tax Program, in substantially the same form as set forth herein. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 

prepare and deliver a certified copy of this Resolution to the County Administrator, the County 
Treasurer, and Eric Setter, Land Bank Coordinator, 127 N. Wyman Street, Suite 100, Rockford, 
Illinois 61101,  

 
Respectfully submitted, 

        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 AGREE     DISAGREE 
 
_________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Keith McDonald, Chairman         Keith McDonald, Chairman                               
                             
_________________________________          ___________________________________ 
John Butitta, Vice Chairman           John Butitta, Vice Chairman 
 
_________________________________          ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby               Jean Crosby 
 
_________________________________           ____________________________________ 
Paul Arena               Paul Arena  
 
________________________________      ____________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman                     Joe Hoffman 
 
______________________________      _____________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd          Dorothy Redd 
 
__________________________________        _____________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado                     Jaime Salgado 
 

 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County  

of Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of __________, 2021. 
 
 



 
                      ________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph Chiarelli, Chairman of the 
           County Board of the  
           County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
 
 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: July 22, 2021 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission the following: 
 
a. Federal Register / Vol. 86, No. 126 / Tuesday, July 6, 2021 / Notices 

 
b. Federal Register / Vol. 86, No. 131 / Tuesday, July 13, 2021 / Notices 

 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy Winnebago 
County Treasurer the Investment Report as of July, 2021. 

 
3. County Clerk Gummow received the Monthly Report for June, 2021 from the 

Winnebago County Recorder’s Office.  
 

4. County Clerk Gummow received from ComEd a letter regarding their intent to 
perform vegetation management activities on distribution circuits in our area within 
the next few months.  
 

 
     

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Economic Development Committee
	Resolution Abating Property Taxes on Property Located at 707 Fulton Avenue
	Resolution Authorizing Participation in Abandoned Residential Property
	Resolution Approving Greenways
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution Adopting Procedures for Remote Meeting Attendance
	Public Works Committee
	(21-019) Resolution 
	(21-020) Resolution
	(21-021) Resolution
	(21-022) Ordinance
	(21-023) Resolution
	Unfinished Business
	Rob Sickler
	William LeFevre, Rebecca Ihne & Karl Ericksen
	Gabrielle Torina
	Greg Tilly
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Reimbursable Technology
	American Rescue Plan (ARP) Ordinance
	Emergency Rental Assistance Program Ordinance
	Resolution Adopting Criteria for Operation of County's Delinquent Tax Program
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



